


























































































































































































































Management Discussion & Analysis

ART Housing Finance (India) Ltd. (AHFL" or ‘the Company’) is registered with
National Housing Bank (NHB) as a Housing Finance Company (HFC). The Company
provides long-term housing loans to self-employed and salaried persons belonging to
the Low Income Group (LIG) and Middle Income Group (MIG) within the peripherals
of urban and semi-urban areas.

Financial Highlights as on 31-03-2020
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1.*-FY19 and FY?20 financial numbers are based on IGAAP, whereas,



2.** _FY19 and FY20 financial numbers are based on Ind AS basis
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Product Portfolio and Services

Home Loans

The Company’s housing loan portfolio consists of a range of products designed for LIG and
lower MIG segment borrowers. Loans for purchase of ready /under construction housing
units, self-construction and home improvement/extension are included in this category,
having tenure of up to 30 years.

Non-Home Loans

This category includes loans for purchase of ready built commercial property and to meet
customer requirements against the security of built-up residential, commercial and industrial
properties. They have tenure of up to 15 years depending on loan schemes.

Balance Transfer & Top-Ups

The Company offers the facility of Balance Transfer & Top-Up loans over and above the
housing and nonhome loans provided to the customers. Balance Transfer of the loans is
facilitated from AAHF approved financial institutions. This is based on the past track record,
credibility and repayment ability of the previous loans of the borrowers.

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

As on 31 March 2020 the Company’s Equity Capital stood at * 385 crores and net worth Rs 404
crores. Your Company’s strong focus on maintaining good asset quality by undertaking
adequate due diligence has enabled it to maintain its track record of nil delinquencies. In terms
of reach, your Company is present across six states - Delhi-NCR, Haryana, Rajasthan, Uttar
Pradesh, Gujarat and Maharashtra - covering over 45 locations through a mix of physical and
virtual branches.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resources are a vital element of the Company’s business. The Company relentlessly
strives to create a safe, conducive and stimulating work environment of continuous learning
and growth of its 500+ workforce (as on 31 March, 2020). The human resource policies are
formulated with the objective of attracting the best talent, nurturing and retaining them to
deliver best results. The employees of the Company are time and again provided with various
skill development and learning programmes to boost their morale and motivation.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Internal control systems of the Company are commensurate to the size of its business and
the nature of its operations. The Company ensures that the internal control systems are well-
designed to ensure safeguarding of assets, reliability of financial and operational information,
compliance with all the applicable laws and statutes and proper recording and reporting of
the transactions.

The COVID-19 Pandemic & Lockdown




The COVID-19 pandemic has spread across the world — leading to well above 4.6
million confirmed infections, over 308,000 deaths, enormous human suffering and a
full stop on virtually all commercial and economic activities. Even India, apparently
relatively fortunate up to now, has had over 1155191 confirmed cases and more than
28084 deaths. With lockdowns spreading across countries accounting for over 50% of
the world’s gross domestic product (GDP), it has caused disruptions on an
unimaginable scale. Nobody really knows how long the pandemic will last; whether
it will increase in the winter of 2020-21 and if so how, and what will be its final toll on
lives and livelihood.

In India too, which implemented a lockdown since 25 March 2020, the pandemic has
created shocks ripping through society and the world of business. After a nationwide
lockdown involving 1.35 billion people over 55 continuous days, the debate is now on
how to gradually open the economy without seriously risking a major spike in
infections — something that India’s frail medical facility can ill cope with.

AHFL took immediate steps to handle this force majeure situation, some of which
have been:

e Keeping employee safety as the topmost priority, and so ensuring that all
employees moved immediately to “Work-from-Home” (WFH). All employees
were advised to strictly follow lockdown guidelines of the Government;

e IT team of the Company moved in swiftly to ensure availability of sufficient
bandwidth, setting up virtual private networks and making available multiple
platforms for collaboration and team meetings over digital media;

e Triggering business continuity plans — for servicing and recovery; and

e Engaging all business partners digitally and through WFH protocol for
business continuity.

The situation is still evolving and it is not possible to hazard a guess on how this
pandemic will evolve. On its part, AHFL will be focusing on balance sheet protection,
conservative liquidity management, operating expenses management and
strengthening collections.



Information Technology




ART Digital Framework

Automation and Digitalization of the Home Loan Process was divided in four Phase post choosing of the Core
Lending Solution including the General Ledger AP & AR which creates the complete life cycle of the customer
including internal financial transactions.

Core Lending Application Omni Fin — Application built on Java & Jboss as application Platform with MySQL as
database.
This application was finalized on the following parameters :Stability /Scalability /Agile/Technology/Mobility

Designed & Developed an Android based Mobile App which was mainly used for Customer Acquisition
/Collections/Builder and DSA empanelment etc.. Used API based integration with third party solution providers like
CIBIL — Credit Report etc.. kept the Mobile app open for multiple API integration.

Mobile App is integrated with Core Lending systems which is again built on signal Data base platform for easy and
real time data follow.

Present Digitization was planned and focused more on Documentation, Process, Policy and Paper Less .
Core Lending Systems is integrated with Document management systems for storing of the all customer documents

collected through the digital mode. These documents are stored encrypted and accessible only through the
authorized and approved users through the Core Lending Systems.




ART Digital Framework -2

Non-Traditional Data Capture is more at UAT level. The data captured from this source can be used for building our
own data warehouse / Machine learning which can be used by the Underwriting team during sanction and Customer
service team for cross and upsell to the existing customers depending on the customer’s behavior repayment pattern
etc....

Core Lending Systems is also integrated with multiple third party serive like PAN verification /Auto Msging/ DAAS
(Decision as Service) /Experian & CIBIL Bureau’s and Payment gateway for IMD collections.

Customer Service Portal on the website is automated for Customer’s directly accessing their details via the website
where the data is fetched in secured manner from the core system.

All these process are completed at Phase IV which was initially planned and executed.

Certain Limitation from the regulatory body has limited the digitization of process like e sign, e kyc , e stamp et..

Customer Acquisition using :
Android based mobile app Automation of Loan Loan Management System

including capturing of Origination Systems up to which is pending automation
documents digitally and CIBIL Sanction level . & Digitization




ART Digital Framework -3

Back of House Automation —

» Human Resource Management Systems - Employee Mgmt.- Recruitment Process-On Boarding -Employment Action
post onboarding — Performance Management System- Payroll — Attendance both Mobile based including GEO Fence
and Geo Tagging — Reimbursement e-pay — E-separation.

Expense Management Automation- All Vendor bills approval process has been automated including the digital upload
of the invoice with less of Human Interference — This product has been in house developed by the internal IT Team.

» Internal Audit Automation — This product is developed in house and his still in UAT phase with user Dept.

> Short Term Digital Roadmap — Considering the present COVID 19 Situation .

Contact Less Collection Systems with payment gateway integration.

Contact Less Customer Service systems which is more customer centric.

CRM Tool for Customer management life cycle.

Minimal Contact less on boarding of new business through different technology




IT & Risk Management

In House Data Centre

Servers secured using DMZ zones

Built Virtualization technology

Disaster Recovery Site built on MS Azure

Data Centre built as per the standard and regulatory Norms

BCP/DR Plan including the manual in place with RPO -30 Mins and RTO -8hrs and 30min Replication on real time.
All the Systems including server protected by the latest Anti Threat protection tool

All the End user’s laptops protected with encryption to protect the data theft/loss of the company asset.

Cloud based Mail Solution with base DLP (Data Loss Protection) wit Microsoft.

Company owned Tablets and Mobile app and other business application protected using EMM (Enterprise Mobile
management ).

All IT & Security Polices in place as per the NHB guidelines.
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IT & Risk Management

VAPT conducted to analysis the Risk in the present business application.

All Branches including the Corporate office built with NextGen Firewalls with HA( High Availability)
Limited User access and specific to job roles assigned.

Regular patching of all the systems to protect business from nay untoward attacks both from internal and external
point.

Centralized Helpdesk with Ticketing systems and Assets management .

All Branches equipped with CCTV camera and centrally controlled

Regular Audits by the Internal Audit team

RISK control Matrix maintained as per guidelines.

Analyzing of transactional and Systems logs for any kind of threats & abnormal activates.

Cyber Security Awareness among the team through Mails presently.

Secured Work From Home Solution built on every company owned Device issued .

Communication between he user and corporate data center built using VPN.

VV VY
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Seventh (7) Director’s Report on the
affairs of ART Housing Finance (India) Limited (formerly known as ART Affordable
Housing Finance (Indw) Limited) (hereinafter referred to as “the Company” “your
Company” or “AHFL"), together with annual audited Ind AS financial statements for
the financial year ended on March 31, 2020.

FINANCIAL REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Ind AS adoption

As mandated by MCA, the Company has prepared its Financial Statements as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as per Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter ("Ind AS").

The Company has prepared its Ind AS compliant financial statements for the year
ended on March 31, 2020, the comparative period ended on March 31, 2019 and an
opening Ind AS balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 (the date of transition).

For periods ended up-to the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company had prepared
its financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (previous GAAP).
A. Income

Your Company posted total income of Rs 73.9 crores during the year, as compared to
Rs 88.9 crores in the previous year which represents a decrease of 16.9% year-on-year,
Out of this, interest income on loans has decreased by 16,6%, from Rs 83.0 crores in
the previous year to Rs 69.2 crores in FY 20019-20. This is primarily due to decrease in
loan portfolio as compared to previous year, Your Company’s Net Income (net of

financial costs) is recorded at Rs 55.1 crore.
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Sources of Income

19% 4%

@ [nterest On Loans @ Poos and Other Changes @ Other Income i I From Envestment

B. Expenses

Expenses including financial costs {excluding Impairment of financial assets) for the
year stood at Rs 60.8 crores, as compared to Rs 66.4 crores for the previous year
representing a decrease of 8.4%. The major contribution in this is Employee benefit
expenses which accounts for Rs. 30.4 Crores (i.e. 50 % of the total Expenses (excluding
Impairment of financial assets))

Expenses

19%

3

# Employer Benefit Expenses ® Finanoe Cost u Other Expenses (Excl Impair of finan assets)

. Profits

Your Company earned a Profit after tax of Rs 5.6 crores for the year as against Profit
after tax of Rs 15.7 crores in the previous year. This is primarily due to low business
and additional expected credit losses booked on account of likely economic [mpac-inn
customers cashflows due to COVID-19 because of external headwinds in NBFC/HFC

markel.
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{in Crores)

Particulars FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
; Total Revenues 7387 88.86
Total Expenditure 65,32 66.73
Profit before Taxation (PBT) 8.54 12
Less: Provisions for Tax/ Deferred Tax 293 6.44
Net Profit after Taxes (PAT) 5.61 ~ 15.68
 Other comprehensive income (net of tax) _ 0.01 000
Total comprehensive income for the year 5.62 15.68
Earnings per share (Face Value Rs. 10/~ each)
Basic (Rs.) 0.15 0.41
Diluted (Rs.) 0.14 0.40
COVID-19 PANDEMIC

COVID-19 is a global pandemic, which continues to spread across the world and India
is not exception and has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in global
and Indian financial markets and an unprecedented level of disruption on socio-
economic activities. Since March 24, 2020, the Indian government had announced a
series of lock-down which was further extended. The recent directions from
Government allows for calibrated and gradual withdrawal of lockdown and partial
resumption of selected economic activities. Based on the information available till
date, the Company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments,
estimates and possible forward looking scenarios to assess and provide for the impact
of the pandemic on the Financial Statements specifically while assessing the expected
credit loss on financial assets by applying management overlays. The extent to which
the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s operations and financial metrics
including the expected credit losses on financial assets will depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain.

The Company has also taken appropriate steps for cost optimization due to likely
economic business losses of the Company.

A detailed discussion on impact of COVID-19 on the HFC sector and operations of the
Company is covered in ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

In FY 19-20 also, the trust deficit and crises of confidence continues within the Banking
system towards NBFC/ HFC due to matters intrinsic to a few NBFCs/ HEFCs including
ALM challenges that started wilnessing from H2 FY19. The banks became over-
cautious in lending to the sector impacting the growth of credit offtake in the entire
industry. Your Company as such does not have any of the issues that plagued the
industry on the ALM side. However, given the external headwinds, we consciously



took a cautious approach towards calibrated growth and conservation of liquidity. In
addition, we were able to get funds (as term loans) from other financial institutions
worth Rs 48 Crore, Refinance limit of Rs 75 Crore from NHB in the month of December
& Rs 60 Crore under special Scheme of LiFT by Government of India.

a) Sanctions

During the year, your Company has sanctioned loans amounting to Rs 81.1 crores as
compared to Rs 388.3 crores in the previous year.

b) Disbursements

During the year, your Company has disbursed loans amounting to Bs 67.31 crores as
compared to Rs 362.7 crores in the previous year. The decline in disbursement is due
to the external headwinds in NBFC/HFC markeL.

Disbursement (In cr)

T 3
o7 153 7

R

Fy 1 FY¥ 18 19 Y 20

¢} Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Your Company has developed a strong collections and recovery mechanism, which
together with strong origination standards, has resulted in 0.27% of Gross NPAs in its
portfolio.

Your Company continued to review its portfolio quality periodically to avoid any
delinquencies, and apply course corrections if any required, apart from maintaining
high lending standards to mitigate risks.

During the year under review, your company has made a provision for Expected
Credit Losses (ECL) for Rs 4.5 er towards the credit impaired loans and other loans.
This also includes the additional amount provided by the Company due to likely
economic impact on customers’ cashflows due to COVID-19.



d) Portfolio of the company

The total gross loan outstanding portfolio of your Company stood at Rs 508.8 crores
as on March 31, 2020 as against Rs 560.5 crores in the previous year.

Portfolio (In Crore)

560.5
600 453.5 508.8
400 !
200 a8.1
a —— :
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The average ticket size of retail portfolio as on March 31, 2020 stood at Rs 9.2 lakhs as
compared to Bs 9.5 Lakhs in previous year.

BRANCH NETWORK

The Company’s branch network spread across 49 locations across 6 regions {Delhi
NCR, Haryana, Rajasthan, Maharashtra, Gujarat and Uttar Pradesh) as on 1= March,
2020

Details of the branches of the Company as on March 31, 2020 are given below:

Region Branch Locations
Count
(Physical &
Virtual)
Delhi-NCR 2 Delhi NSP, Mayur Vihar
Haryana 9 Gurugram, Faridabad, Rohtak, Karnal, Panipat,
Kaithal, Yamuna Nagar, and 2 Virtual Branches
Rajasthan 16 Jaipur, Bikaner, Ajmer, Alwar, Kota, Jodhpur,
Udaipur, Sikar and 8 Virtual branches
Maharashtra 7 Kalyan (Mumbai), Pune, Ahmednagar, Kolhapur,
Boisar (Mumbai) and 2 Virtual branches
Gujarat 11 Ahmedabad, Surat, Vapi, Rajkot, Vadodara, Junagarh,
Jamnagar, Bhavnagar, Mehsana and 2 Virtual
l Branches
Uttar Pradesh 4 Lucknow, Kanpur, Agra, Meerut
Total 49




DIVIDEND

Your Board does not recommend any dividend for the financial vear under review.
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Pursuant to the requirement of section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987, an amount of Rs 1.24
crores has been transferred to Reserves for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.
For details of Reserves and Surplus of the Company, please refer Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year ended on March 31, 2020 of the audited financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020,

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
The key parameters and milestones of the Company has been summarized below:

1. The team strength stands at 502 as on March 31, 2020

2. The Company operates through 49 locations across 6 regions.

3. Company has also invested in strengthening the collections team for early
controls on the delinquency, if any.

4. The Company has made significant investment, both knowledge and financial,
in digitisation of the business workflow activities.

5. The gross loan portfolio as on March 2020 stood at Rs 508.78 crore as against Rs
560,52 crore as on March 2019,

6 The Capital Adequacy Ratio as on March 2020 was 128.07% well above the
current regulatory limit of 12.00% as stipulated by NHB for housing finance
companies.

7. Your company has continued to maintain good asset quality with a Gross NPA
at 0.27% an March 31, 2020 and Net NPA at 0.22%, in-spite of difficult economic
environment.

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of the business
of your Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of your
Company have occurred between the end of year under review and date of this
Director’'s Report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of the main Business of the Company.



SUBSIDARY COMPANY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company has 1 (One) wholly owned subsidiary as on March 31, 2020 i.e. ART
Distribution (I) Private Limited. Your Company does not have any joint venture{s),
associate company(ies) within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Act. Pursuant to the
provisions of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2016 and all other applicable sections hereafter as
amended from time to time, the company shall not be required to consolidate its
financial statements in case its ultimate or any intermediate holding company files
consolidated financial statements with the Registrar which are in compliance with the
applicable Accounting Standards. Henceforth, the Company has not consolidated its
financial statements with its wholly owned subsidiary company i.e. ART Distribution
(1) Private Limited.

During the year under review, there has been no material change in the nature of the
business of the subsidiary company and no Company has become or ceased to be
subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL
(i) AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
On March 31, 2020 the Authorised Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs
1000,00,00,000/ - (Rupees One Thousand Crores Only) divided into 100,00,00,000
(One Hundred Crores) Equity Shares of Rs 10/ - (Rupees Ten Only) each,
(ii) ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

On March 31, 2020 the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the
Company stood at Es 385,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Eighty-Five
Crores Only) divided into 38,50,00,000 (Thirty-Eight Crores Fifty Lakhs) Equity
Shares of Rs 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each,

Your Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to voting,
dividend or otherwise.

BORROWING POWERS OF THE COMPANY
Pursuant to section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), the borrowing

limits approved by the shareholders which may be exercised by the Board, presently
stand at Rs. 750 crores.



PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company being a non-deposit accepting Housing Finance Company as per the
Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 has not accepted, renewed or
held any public deposits during the year under review and shall not accept any
deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval of the NHB and accordingly
requirements under Chapter V of the Act read with Rule 8(5)(v) and 8(5)(vi) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as well as requirement of maintaining liquid assets
as specified under Section 29B of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 are not
applicable to your Company.

FINANCE

During the year under review, the Company met its funding requirements through
Bank Loans, Loans from NHBCs and availing refinance from NHB (National Housing
Bank).

The aggregate bank borrowings, ie. term loans plus overdraft, at the end of the
financial year stood at Rs 188.0 crores as compared to Rs 198.75 crores al the end of the
previous year. Further the overall borrowings are within regulatory ceiling of 16 times
of net owned funds as prescribed under the NHB Regulations.

The overall cost of borrowings (average) was 8.9% p.a. as on March 31, 2020.

CREDIT LINKED SUBSIDY SCHEME

Your Company and its management team is highly committed to the ‘Housing for all’
mission. Keeping this in mind, the Company participated in Government initiatives
lo facilitate benefits of the ‘Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojna: Credit Linked Subsidy
Scheme’ (PMAY-CLSS) from NHB for its customers across urban and semi-urban
India.

During the year, the Company successfully delivered subsidy of Rs 1788 crores to its
customers under the PMAY-CLSS scheme under different scheme.

Claim received By 1T49=-200

1 Subsidy Amount 1 Ks Lrorn
EWS/LIG Old 9 015
EWS/LIG New 837 17.74
Total Bd6 17.88




CREDIT RATING

During the year, the Company initiated the rating process based on its financial
performance for the financial year 2018-19 and has been rated as “A- (Stable Outlook)”
by the rating agency CARE. But due to continue stress in HFC induslry, your company
also not able to distance itself from the external headwinds in NBFC/ HFC market.
These adverse conditions have further been accentuated for AHF with adverse news
flow around our promoter group & scrutiny by government agencies at the promoter
level. Following this development, rating agency CARE has revised the company’s
long-term rating to “CARE: BBB (Credit Watch with negative implications)” in March
2020 and subsequently further changed to "CARE BB+ with Stable outlook” in May
2020 due to industry wide impact of COVID-19.

MORATORIUM OF LOANS

The Reserve Bank of India, issued guidelines on March 27, 2020 and its extension vide
its notification dated May 23, 2020 permitting all commercial banks, co-operative
banks, all-India Financial Institutions and NBFCs (including housing hnance
companies and micro-finance institutions) (“lending institubions”) to give moratorium
bo customers on payment of instalments falling due between March 1, 2020 to May 31,
2020 and further extended from June 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020. Accordingly, the
Company started offering moratorium to its customers basis a Board approved policy.
For all such accounts where the moratorium is granted, the prudential assets
classification shall remain stand-still during the moratorium period (i.e. the number
of days past due shall exclude the moratorium period for the purposes of asset
classification under Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
Norms)

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the
Board of Directors and the Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, the extract of Annual Return of
the Company as at financial year ended March 31, 2020 as in the prescribed Form
MGT-9 is attached here as Annexure- A and the same is also available on the website
of the Company at www.arthic.com.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2020 is
mentioned as below:

 Name of Director Category
Mr Raj Vikash Verma (Chairman) Non-Executive Director
Mr Arvind Roshan Hali (Managing Director & CEO) | Executive Director
Mr Brijesh Kumar Gupta Independent Director
Mr Pradeep Kumar MNon-Executive Director
Lt Gen (Retd) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar Independent Director
CESSATION:

During the year under review, the following Directors ceased form the Board of the
Company:

Ms. Rakhee Kapoor Tandon resigned from her position as Non-Executive
Director w.e.f. August 6, 2019,

Ms Anita Kapur resigned from her position as Independent Director w.e.f.
March 26, 2020,

APPOINTMENTS:

During the year under review, no additional Directors were appointed on the Board
of the Company.

Subsequent to the year under review, the following changes took place in the
constitution of the Board of the Company:

Mr. Raj Vikash Verma resigned from the post of Non-Executive Director w.e.f.
April 30, 2020

Lt Gen Dr § P Kochhar resigned from the post of Independent Director w.el.
May 2, 2020

Mr Arvind Roshan Hali resigned from the post of MD & CEO w.e.f. May 20,
2020

Mr Brijesh Kumar Gupta resigned from the post of Independent Director w.e.f
the closing hours of May 20, 2020

Mr. Pradeep Kumar resigned from the post of Non-Executive Director w.e.f.
h"[ﬂ}r 2'?. Eﬂzﬂ

Mr. Atul Mehta was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of
Independent Director w.e.f. May 9, 2020

A %’/&%ﬁi
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« Mr Rahul Kumar Pandey was appointed as an Additional Director in the
capacity of Independent Director w.e.f. May 22, 2020

« Ms Ritika Sati was appointed as an Additional Director in category of Whole-
Time Director in the Board Meeting dated May 9, 2020 subject to regulatory
approvals as required.

» Mr Manish Singh was appointed as an Additional Director in category of
Whole-Time Director & Interim CEQ in the Board Meeting dated May 20, 2020

subject to regulatory approvals as required.

Resolutions seeking approval of members for the appointment of Independent
Directors forms part of notice convening the 7" AGM. Necessary details regarding
their appointment as required under the Act are given in the notice of AGM. The
appointment of Ms Ritika Sati as Whole-Time Director and Mr Manish Singh as
Whole-Time Director & Interim CEQ is subject to RBI approval pursuant to Master
Circular- Housing Finance Companies - Approval of Acquisition or Transfer of
Control (NHB) Directions, 2016 read with RBI press release w.rL Transfer of
Regulation of Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) to Reserve Bank of India dated
August 13, 2019.

DIRECTOR(S) DISCLOSURES

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of the
Act, circular(s) / notification(s) / direction(s) issued by the National Housing Bank
{(NHB Regulations) and other applicable laws, none of the Lirectors on the Board of
your Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors.

Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received
declaration from Mr. Brijesh Kumar Gupta, Lt Gen (Retd.) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar and
Ms Anita Kapur, Independent Directors of the Company affirming compliance with
the criteria of independence as specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In terms of the Act, the following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP")
of the Company as on March 31, 2020:

s Mr Arvind Roshan Hali - Managing Director & CEO
Mr Pankaj Jain - Chief Financial Officer
Ms Ritika Sati - Company Secretary & Legal Counsel

After the year under review, following changes took place in the KMPs of the
Company:



« Mr. Arvind Roshan Hali resigned from the post of MD & CEQ w.e.f. May 20,
2020

« Mr Pankaj Jain, ceased to be a KMP of the Company pursuant to his resignation
from the post of Chief Financial Officer w.e.f May 31, 2020; and

e Mr Vipin Jain was designated as KMP of the Company pursuant to his
appointment as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company we.ef July 1, 2020,

DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of
Association of the Company, considering the Board constitution as on the date of this
report, the said section shall not be applicable to the Company.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors adopted
a Board Performance Evaluation Policy and detailed process for facilitating
performance evaluation of the Board, as a collective entity, that of its Committec(s)
and individual Directors including the Chairman.

However, considering the COVID-19 pandemic and the MCA circular dated, March
24, 2020, the Meeting of Independent Directors during, the year under review was not
scheduled under the exemptions granted by MCA. And considering the resignation of
all Directors and the appointment of new Directors after the year under review, the
same shall form part of the Annual Report next year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors the Company
has constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee whose scope of work covers
the performance evaluation of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management of the Company. The evaluation and appraisal is done in line with the
Performance Management Policy of the Company. Considering the current COVID-
19 pandemic, the performance appraisal was only done for certain selective

employees.
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are given in MGT-9 (Annexure
A).
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors had constituted the Audit Committee pursuant to provisions
of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 on August 21 2015. The Committee consists

of the following Directors as on March 31, 202(x

Name of Director - Member Designation

Mr Brijesh Kumar Gupta Independent Director
Mr Raj Vikash Verma MNon-Executive Director
Lt Gen (Retd) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar | Independent Director

Subsequent to the year under review, the Audit Committee was re-constituted on July

20, 2020 with the following members: -

‘Name of Director - Member Designation

Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey Independent Director
Mr. Atul Mehta independent Director
Mr. Shrenik Shah ) Independent Director

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors had constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on 21st
August,2015. The Committee consists of following Directors as on March 31, 2020:
Designation
Independent Director

Name of Director - Member

Mr Brijesh Kumar Gupta

| Mr Raj Vikash Verma Non-Executive Director

Lt Gen (Retd) Dr Sukhiraj Pal Kochhar

Independent Director

.

Subsequent to the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
was re-constituted on July 20, 2020 with the following members: -

Name of Director - Member Designation

Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey Independent Director
Mr. Atul Mehta Independent Director
Mr. Shrenik Shah Independent Director

3
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Executive Committee as a sub-committee of the Board on
April 28, 2014, The Committee consists of following Directors as on March 31, 2020:

Name of Director - Member Designation

Mr Arvind Roshan Hali Managing Director & CEO
Mr Pradeep Kumar Non-Executive Director
Mr Raj Vikash Verma MNon- Executive Director

After the vear under review, considering the resignation of Managing Director and
Non - Executive Directors all the Company, the Committee stands dissolved on the
date of signing this reporl.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee on January 16,
2018, The Committee consists of following Directors as on March 31, 2020:

Name of Director - Member Designation

Mr Arvind Roshan Hali Managing Director & CEO
Mr Pradeep Kumar MNon- Executive Director
Lt Gen (Retd.) Dr Sukhraj Pal Kochhar Independent Director

Subsequent to the year under review, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
shall be re-constituted by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on July 24, 2020
with the following proposed members: -

 Name of Director - Member Designation
Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey Independent Director
| Mr. Atul Mehta Independent Director
Mr. Shrenik Shah Independent Director

NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-2(:

Table containing details of the Board Meetings and Committees Meetings held during
the year under review, along with dates are as below. These meetings were held in a
manner that not more than 120 days intervened between two consecutive meetings.
The required quorum was present at all the above-mentiongd meetings.
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5. Name of Committee No. of Meetings | Date of Meetings
No
1. Board Meetings 8 (Eight) 1. May 06, 2019;
2. June D6, 2019;
3, June 27, 2019;
4. September 19, 201%;
5. November 14, 2019;
6. December 12, 2019;
7. March 09, 2020;
8. March 25, 2020
2. | Audit Committee 4 (Four) 1. May 06, 2019;
2. November 14, 201%;
3. March 25, 2020
3. Nomination and 6 (Six) 1. May 06, 201%;
Remuneration 2. June 27, 2019
Committee
4 Risk Management 2 (Two) 1. May 06, 2019
Committee 2, March 25, 2020
5 Corporate Social 1 {One) 1. May 06, 2019
Responsibility 2. March 25, 2020
Committee

In terms of Schedule IV of the Act, a meeting of the
to be held. However, considering the COVID-19 pan
March 24, 2020 the Meeting of Independent Directors during the year under review was

not scheduled under the exemptions granted by MCA.

Dhuring the year under review, the Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 2018-

19 was held on June 28, 2019.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRCTORS/ MEMBERS AT THE BOARD AND COMMITTEE

MEETINGS AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Independ

ent Directors was required
demic and the MCA circular dated,

Nomination & Corporate Social
# | Name Board Meetings *““;dw Remuneration | Responsibility
Committee Committee
| hlll:lhﬂp Attended hhuﬂlhd# Attended ""Hd‘" 5 | Anended :h:'Hn#H Attended
Ms
Raakhe - %
1. | Kapoor % 2 g ' = :
Tandon
=

IRE
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Mr

Arvind
Roshan 2
Hali

Lt Gen
(Retd) Dr

Sukhraj Pal B [ 3 2 2 2 2
Kochhar

Mr Raj
Vikash B B 3 3 2 2 -
Verma

Mr Brijesh
Kumar B 7 3 2 2 2 =
Gupta

Mr
Pradeep B 2 - = - =
Kumar

Ms Anita
7. | Kapur 8 i . 5 £ "

“Ms Rakhee Kapoor Tandon resigned from the Board as a Non-Executive Bireclor woe k. August & 2019
*Ms Anitn Kapur resigned from the Board as Indepenident [Hrector w.ef. March 3, 2030

STATUTORY AUDITORS

In terms of provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the auditor appointed in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) meeting should hold office from the conclusion of that meeting till the
conclusion of the sixth AGM, with the meeting wherein such appointment had been
made being counted as the first meeting. M/s. Walker Chandiok & Associates,
Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the
' Annual General Meeting of the Company for a period of 5 years till the conclusion
of 11" Annual General Meeting of the Company. However, subsequent to the year
under review, M/s. Walker Chandiok & Associates had expressed their inability to
continue as Statutory Auditors vide their resignation before the expiry of their term,
resulting into casual vacancy.

The Board of Directors appointed M/s.5M M P & Associates, Chartered Accountants
as Statutory Auditors of the Company, wherein the said appointment was approved

by the Shareholders in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June 10, 2020, till
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the

e =1 N s
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AUDITORS’ REPORTS
Statutory Audit Report

M /5.5 M M P & Associates, Slatutory Auditors in their report(s) on the annual audited
Ind AS financial statements of your Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2020, have not submitted any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or
disclaimers, However, Clarifications, wherever necessary, have been included in the
“Notes to Accounts’ section of the Annual Report. Furthermore, a Report under para
no. 3 & 4 of the National Housing Bank Directions, 2010 is attached and is self-
explanatory.

Secretarial Audit Report

In terms of Section 204 of the Act, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s Dolly
Vilacha & Co., Practicing Company Secretary, to undertake secretarial audit of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. The repart of M/s Dolly Vilacha
& Co., Practicing Company Secretary in prescribed Form MR-3 shall be subsequently
annexed to this Director’s Report.

Maintenance of cost records

Your Company is not required to maintain cost records in terms of Section 148(1) of
the Act.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has set up a strong operating framework and developed robust credit
appraisal policies to evaluate income and repayment capabilities of customers. The
Company continues to practice prudence in terms of its lending practices and uses
effective checks and balances to mitigate risk exposure. This includes a credit history
check from credit bureau data, an employment, business and residence check through
personal discussions, and in-house legal, technical and fraud checks in addition to
agency verifications.

Company’s Risk Management framework provides the mechanism for risk
assessment and mitigation. The Board has delegated responsibility of overseeing Risk
Management framework to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management
Committee (RMC) of your Company was comprised of Mr Arvind Roshan Hali,
Managing Director & CEO, Mr Raj Vikash Verma, Director and Lt Gen (Retd) Dr
Sukhraj Pal Kochhar, Independent Director of the Company as on March 31, 2020. The
Risk Management Committee is responsible for reviewing the risks associated with
the business of the Company, its root causes and the efficacy of the measures taken to
mitigate the same. The Committee meets on half yearly basis for review of risk

management parameters and analysis.
x L L%’ g &
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After the year under review, considering the resignation of Managing Director and
Non - Executive Directors all the Company, the Committee stands dissolved on the

dalte of signing this report.

The said committee shall be re-constituted pursuant to induction of new Independent
Directors as well as approval from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for approving
appointment of Ms. Ritika Sati as Whole Time Director and Mr. Manish Singh as
Whaole Time Director & CEO.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of
internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems,
accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company.

Further hased on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake
corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.
Significant audit observations and recommendations along with corrective actions
thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and
explanations obtained by us, and based on the report(s) of Statutory Auditors and
submission(s) by Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial year under
review, the Directors are of the view that the internal financial controls with reference
to the financial statements of the Company were adequate and operating efficiently.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and established a mechanism for
Directors and Employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud, or violation of code of conduct. The mechanism also provides for
adequate safeguard against the victimisation of employees who avail the mechanism
and allows direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional
cases. The whistle blower policy is available on the website of the Company at
_hugg:{,farg_h_!;__cﬂmNgng[l‘sbﬂdUuu|hﬁdfiﬂ-lﬂ-?m-15391?315?.@!.

A B

DIRFCTOR'S REPORT 2401920



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

In terms of Section 135 of the Act, the Board of Directors adopted a ‘CSR Policy” which
helps towards contribution and furtherance of your Company’s objective to create
value in the society and community in which it operates, through its services, conduct
and initiatives, 5o as to promote sustained growth for the society and community, in
fulfilment of its role as a socially responsible corporate citizen.

The CSR Policy of the Company inter-alia indicates the CSR activities that can be
undertaken by the Company and defines the roles and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors and CSR Committee in implementing and monitoring (SR projects
identified and supported by the Company. The CSR Policy of the Company is
available on the website of the Company at
hitps://arthfc.com/upload/quicklinkpd fguikpd 0 | -08-2019-1 SGha464 1 708, pdf.

During the Financial Year under review the Company has contributed an amount
aggregating to Rs. 19,83,000/-. (Rupees Nineteen Lacs Eighty-Three Thousand Only)
towards the Prime Minister's Mational Relief Fund towards CSR activities for financial
year 2019-20.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Considering the nature of industry in which the Comparny operates, transactions with
related parties of the Company are in the ordinary course of business which are also
on arm's length basis. All such Related Party Transactions were placed before the
Audit Committee for approval and thereafter for the approval of the shareholders of
the Company for Omnibus approval for better Corporate Governance, The particulars
of contracts or arrangements with related parties as referred in section 188(1) of the
Act is attached to this Report in prescribed form AOC - 2 as Annexure C

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 36 of the financial statement
which sets out related party disclosures. The Company’s Policy on dealing with
related party transactions, as approved by the Board is available on website of the
Company at hitps://an hfic.com/upload/quicklinkpdfiquikpd27-0 3-2020-1585296529 pdf.

GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERN ANCE

In order to adopt best practices and greater transparency in the operations of the
Company and in compliance with the Directions issued by National Housing Bank i.e.
“Housing Finance Companies - Corporate Governance (MNational Housing Bank)
Directions, 2016” (“NHB Directions"), the Board of Directors of the Company
approved and adopted the “Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance”. The
Guidelines are on Corporate Governance are available on the website of the Company
at hitps://arthfc com/upload/quicklinkpd {fquikpd (30-03-2020- | 38558 F281 pdf.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

In terms of Section 186(11) of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, the Company being a housing finance company registered with NHB, the
Company is exempt from complying the provisions of Section 186 in respect of loans made,
guaraniees given or securities provided by the Company. Further, details of the
investments made by the Company please refer Note 7 of the standalone (audited)
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OFTION PLAN AND SCHEME

Your Company believes that its success and ability to achieve objectives is largely
determined by the guality of its workforce and recognises that not only good
employment opportunities but also additional motivating mechanisms are needed to
incentivise employees and aligning their interest with the interest of the Company. In
recognition of the said objective, the Company adopted and implemented AAHF
Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 ("ESOP 2017") pursuant to the approval of the
shareholders, at their meeting held on May 29, 2017 and Employee Stock Option Plan
2019 (“ESOP 2019”) pursuant to the approval of shareholders, at their meeting held on

May 9, 2019.

Below is the summary regarding ESOP 2017 & ESOP 2019 as on March 31, 2020,

T T PO

Approved ESOP Pool 25,00,000 25,00,000 50,00000 | 50,00,000
i 20n7 207 208 2019

Granted tll date

(including

subsequent grants 18,00,000 | 305000 | 2988000 | 394,000 54,87 000 26,317,000
from the lapsed

pool)

Lapsed ( during the

arant period) 350,000 1,532,000 5,86, 500 146500 | 12,15000 1,044,500
Mot Grant 14,550,000 | 173,000 24,001,500 | 247500 42,772,000 25,206,500
Vested  3,05,000 | 35600 0 0 3,40,600 0
Exercised 0 1] ] 0 0 L]

Yot to be exercised 11,455,000 137400 | 24,001,500 | 247500 3931400 EE,EE,ECI]#
| Balance available 728000 | 24,73,500
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DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has formed a robust Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy ("Policy”) in line
with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee
(ICC) has been set-up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.
The Policy on Sexual Harassment of the Company is available on the websile of the
Company at hitps.//arthic.com/upload/quicklinkpdf/quikpdi27-0 3-2020-15852 96807 pdf.

The ICC of your Company comprises of following Members as on March 31, 2020

Name of the Member Designation

Ms Roopa Mehra Presiding Officer

Mr Akhlesh Sharma Member

Ms Mamta Bhardwaj Member

Dr Rajat Mitra Member (on behalf of Swanchetan Society for
Mental Health)

Subsequent to the year under review, Mr Akhlesh Sharma resigned from the
Company, henceforth does not stand as member of ICC. The ICC has been re-
constituted by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on July 24, 2020 with the
following proposed members: -

Name of Director - Member Designation
Ms. Mamta Bhardwaj Sr. Manager - HR
Ms. Vinkeet Kaur Deputy Manager - HR
| Ms. Mili Desai Manager - Legal & Secretarial
Mr. Vishwanath Bahuguna Manager - Corporate Legal
Dr Rajat Mitra on behalf of | Member
Swanchetan Society for Mental
Health)

Mo cases of sexual harassment have been reported nor investigated by the ICC during
the year under review.

ENFRGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORFTION, AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Since the Company provides Home Loans, most of the information as required under
Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8 of Companies
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{Accounts of Companies) Rules, 2014, is not applicable. However, the information, as
applicable, has been given in Aanexure - Dand forms part of this report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has not earned any foreign exchange during the year under review.
Further the amount of foreign exchange outgo is given below:

Earnings: NIL
Outgo: Rs. 0.13 crores

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

During the year under review, no orders have been passed against your Company by
any regulator(s) or court(s) or tribunal(s) which would impact the going concern status
and / or the future operations of your Company.

However, subsequent to the year under review, The Bank Accounts of the Company
were under “debit freexe”, pursuant to the order of Enforcement Directorate (ED) in
matter related to Promoters investigation, and the Company filed the writ petition
with Delhi High Court to resume the normal banking operations of the Company as
below, wherein multiple applications were filed with the Court from time to time,
Pursuant to the Court Order dated June 10, 2020 the decision was received in favour
of the Company for de-freezing of the Bank Accounts of the Company subject to
maintenance of amount as mentioned in the Provisional Attachment Order dated May
5, 2020 and May 19, 2020,

CONFIRMATION ON FRAUD, MISFEASANCE OR ANY IRREGULARITY IN
THE COMPANY

There were no instances of fraud, misfeasance or irregularity detected and reported
in the Company during the year under review.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by us, pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors hereby confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
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and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) they have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws while ensuring that such systems were adequate
and operating effectively.

APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere gratitude to the customers
of the Company for their confidence and patronage; to the Shareholders, regulatory
bodies, bankers and rating agencies for their unyielding support and guidance; and to

the employees for their commitment, hard work and zeal during the year.

By order of the Board of Directors

For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

RS%(Q Pandey

Chairperson
DIN: 00250437

Date: July 24, 2020
Place: Gurugram
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Form Mo, T-o

Annual Return as on the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1} of the

Companies (Managemen! and Administration) Rules, 2014]

LREGISTRATION AND OTHER AILS:
i | CIN 8 | U65999D1L2013PLC255432 N
|
. | Registration Date | July 16, 2013
. Name of the Cnm_pnnl,r ' ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
iv. | Eategnr}r I Eub—l.’:ategnnr of the | Housing Finance Company
| Company

Address of the Registered office
- and contact details
. Whether listed mmpan}r

Mame, Address and Contact

details of Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any

| 107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash

| Place, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034

|No i

' Link Intime India Private Limited
Address: C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai- 400083,

Contact Person: Mr Vishwas Altavar
Tel: +91 22 49186000
Fax: +91 22 49186060

- Email: vishwas.attavar@linkintime.co.in |

il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the
company: -

A

o

‘Name and Descriptionof  NIC Codeof the % to total turnover of
Hu. ‘main prndum ,I’ services Pmducl;i’ service ighf.- company I

' Providing Housing Loans & 64920 100% ‘

Mortgage

L A
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ILPARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

[Associate held

Sr. | Name And Address Of = CIN/GLN ' Holding/ % of | Applicable

No. The Company Subsidiary  shares | Section

Consumer Finance (India) 292567
Private Limited

' Private Limited | 283977
IV. SHARE _HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

1. | ART Business & U67190DL2016PTC ~ Holding 100,00 | 2(46)

2. ART Distribution (I) | U67190DL2015PTC | Subsidiary | 100.00 | 2(87)(ii)

Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the  No. of Shares held at the end of the

‘Shareholders | year year

Demat  Physical  Total % of Demat Eﬁiﬂ Total % of ‘
Total i Tolal
Shares [0 Shares _
| A. Promoter | .' | || |
1) Indian _
'a) Individual/ = = 1 = =l = - - :
| HUF . ! S T |-
|b) Central . - | - - | - - - -
! Gﬂ“‘ 1 1 | | | &
ic) State - - - - - - - -
Govlis) | [ L . — .
d) Bodies Corp | 385000000 | - | 385000000 | 100 | 385000000 - | 3650.00,000 100 il
¢) Banks/ Fl : - 1 = =3 . b 1 ' :
f) Any Other - | - = = : . = R P
SubtelA) | 385000000 [ - 385000000 100 Jnmm - 85000000 100 -
3) Foreign : . | 0.0 ‘ - ; 000 | -
#) NRIs- - . 2 | oo : z i 000 -
Uindividuals — | -
h) Other- - - - | oo - . 0.00 -
Individuals
i) Bodies Corp. ! - - - .00 - - B 0.00 -
Pm;n . 2 = .00 . = x 0.00
k) Any . : = 0.00 ; : 000 | -
| Other.... ;



385000000 | 100 | 385000000 | - | 3B5000000 | 100 @ -
- 000 - W = | 000 ) -
: 0.00 2 - = 000 | -
= 0.00 z | z o0 | -
= 0.00 . = . 000 | -
- om0 =z | b= g 000 | -
= 0.00 . : = 000 | -
- 0.00 - = . 000 | -
: 0.00 . = = 000 | -
: 0.00 = A = o0 | -
o ! S 2 BTSRRI 1
2. Mon (.oa - L -
Institutions |
1.15.::&” 2 0.00 = = 5 000 | -
Corp.
(i) Indian
(i} Owverseas
b} Individuals
(i) Individual > 0.00 : = Z a0 | -
sharcholders
holding
nominal share
capital up to
Rs. 1 lakh
0 Tt
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Hs 1
lakh , B
) Others 2 0.00 = [a = 000 | -
(Specify) L [ N =

.
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Sub-total (B)(2) | - fic ) = 1= - | -
I 1

| = . | | 1 . i I
Total Public | . EER Z 0 2 2 . 0 "
Shareholding

iﬂlﬂzfllﬂlﬂ]+

(B)2). =. | . - . = -
. Shares held = - = 0,0 = = = (L0 =
by Custodian

for GDRs &

| ADRs f — I . e

Grand Total m,ﬂm.mlf 1 im M'mmi-mm|

| {A+B+C) i o EL GRS
-mwamwmmmmEMWMmimmmmmwmm
MMJ&M#MHMMM@JmmMWMﬂMMMWM
Aoniinees on behalf of ABCFE

i, Haakhe Kapoor andon representiog @5 sheres on beball of ARCF
2 Roshini Kapoor representing 1 share on bebalf of ARCF

3 Rafesh (Candhyi representing 1 share oo beball of ABCF

. Varun Kapuar representing T share o bebalf of ARCF

5, Alkesh Tandon represeniing ¥ slare on behall of ABCF

& Ractha Kapoor Kiunns represemting § share on bebalf of AFCF

it.  Shareholding of Promoters

:EIr‘ | s . Shareholding at the | huﬂmlding at the end of Ihe
No Sharcholder’s Name beginning of the year | |
| Mo.of | %of %of |  No.of '!i of | %of [ R
, Shares | total | Shares Shares | total | Shares  change
- Shares | Pladge | Shares | Pledged in share
'nt’ the | d/ | lofthe [/ helding
‘comp |encumb | ‘comp encumbe  during
I any | ered to any | redto theyear
| | otal total | -
. shares | | shares |
| W L il SN EreICERLIS SSSER— = ;——_ TOETHE RO ———
1. ART Business & Consumer Finance SB,SH,MEI,'IJ' 100 - | 38,50,00,000 | 100 | -
(Indtia) Private Limited (ABCF) , It | |
| 2. Raakhe F Knpnar Tandon :Nmm 8 i) | - - ] - = -
Sharcholder representing 95 Shares
on behalf of ABCEF) _ | _ _ .
| 3. Radha Kapoor (Nominee ' 0 F—= = 1 0 £ - =
Sharcholder representing 1 share on
behalf of ABCF ) _ _
| 4. Alkesh Tandon (Mominee [ o e 1 .1 0 : - 2
Sharcholder representing 1 share on
behalf of ABCF ) _ _
| 5. Roshini Kapoor (Nominee I o | - = 0 = = -

Shareholder representing 1 share on
behalf of ABCF)

s gt
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6. | Varum Kapoor (Nominee [0 - - 0 -
Shareholder representing 1 share on
| behalf of ABCF) I

- -:i.'" .__“._._'j..ﬁ{i.m. | - — 0 - ~ o - e i
Shareholder representing 1 share on
behalf of ABCF) '

e ___...:|1m.‘ = ‘ l .

| Shareholding at the beginning of |  Cumulative Shareholding during the year |
the v

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/ = - - il
Dﬂﬂuhﬁhluhﬂﬂjng =

ng the year .
‘At the End of the year 38.50,00,000 100 38, 50,00,000 100
| P M ST PR | e UL e
* The Company fs the wholly owned subsidiary of ART Basiness & Consunter Finance {Tadia) Private Limited (ABCE

and out of the total shareholding of 385000000 heid by ABCF, the follpwing shares are represented by e folfowing
Momrinees on belalf of ARCE

1. Raakhe Kapoor Tandon represeanting 95 shares on behalf of Asy -
2 Roshind Kapoor representiog T share an behalf of ABCF

3 Rajesh Gandhi representing I shane on behalf of ARCF

. Varun Kapur representing 1 siare on befalf of ABCF

5 Afkesh Tandon representing I share on behalf of ABCF

& Radha Kapoor Khanna representing I share on bedalf of ARCF

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders fother than Directors, Promoters
and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Name Particulars ding at the ulative Shareholding

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

A ' iE
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sharcholding at the beginning of = Cumulative Shareholding during

the year the year
ForEach of the Directors and KMP ~ No.of  %hof fotalshares  No. of shares % of total shares
. shares of the company - of the company
: At the beginning of the year . - - I = - .
Date wise Increase / Decrease in . [ 2 . ' .
- Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/decrease o.p
allotment / transfer / bonus, sweat equity
el )
At the End of the vear . ' . ' = ' :
¥.  Indebtedness
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for
payment: (Amount in Rs lacs)

; Secured Loans Unsecured Total
FAchtem excluding deposits Loans Pepealts Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year
i} Principal Amount 11,215.65 8,650.00 - 19,865.65
i) Interest due but not
paid = ) ) )

iii) Interest accrued but

not due ¥ ) ' g
Total (i+Fi+iii) 11,215.65 B,650.00 - 19,865.65
Change in Indebtedness

during the financial year

= Addition 14, 550,00 - - 14550.00
= Reduction 6,965.48 8,650.00 - 15615.48

ok
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Net Change

7,584.52

-8,650.00

Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year

i} Principal Amount

18,800.17

- 18,800.17

i) Imberest duee but nok
paid

iii) Interest acerued but
not due

Todal (i+ii+iii)

lary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of

the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites ufs
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
{c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-

tax Act, 1961

 Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit

Hher Stnﬂl: €

“IThe Remuneration of MD &CFO has been revised vide shareholder's resolation dated May 06, 2019

5,00,000°2

........

2 M Arvind Rﬂd‘llnM“thll,mEHJHMHMMM?MMEMHMMHW
shires under AHFL ESOP Schieme 2019

DIRECTOR'S REFORT 207520
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1i. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Directors
(Amount in Rs)

5. no. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
Remuneration
Ritika Sati, Pankaj Jain,
Company Chief Financial Total
Secretary Officer*
Gross salary
(a) Salary as per
provisions
contained in
section 17(1) of
the Income-tax
Act, 1961
{b) Value of
perquisites
u/517(2) Income- ) i 39,186
tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu
of salary under
section 17(3) - - .
Income-tax Act
1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity - - -
Commission
4. - as % of profit - - 2
- others, specify...
5, Others, please
specify
Total 15,30,840 94,26,468 109,57,308
Stock Option 25,000 1,50,000 1,75,000
i Fankal fam was having 150,000 ESOPs under FSOP Scheme 2007 and was granted 150,000 options under
AHFL ESOP Scheme 2019

*Ms Ritika Sati was having 65,000 ESOPs under ESOP Scheme 2017 and was granted 25000 aptions under AHFL
ESOP Scheme 2019

15,30,840 93,87,282 109,18,122

o

9o
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iii. Remuneration to Directors Other Than MD Manager WTD
{Amount in Rs)
~ Particulars of [ Total
Hemuneration | Amount
Ms Anita Kapur Lt Gen (Retd) D Mir Brijesh Kumar
(Independent Sukhraj Pal Kochhar Gupta
Director) (Independent (Independent
Director) Director) |
Independent Directors |
Fee for attending board
and committee Meetings 140,000 1,90,000 1,80,000 ‘ 5,10,000
~Commission | £ & * 5 [
“Others, please specify : - - =
CTotal() | 1a000 | 19000 | 180000 | 510000
Mon-Executive Directors H = = =
*Few for attending board
committee meetings
| ~Commission
Others, please specify
_{Conveyance Charges) — s [ " - — R —
[Totadf@ = | I ST RSN = P S ,
| Total (B)=(1+2) 140000 | 1sop00 | imooc | sdope0
| Overall Ceilingas per | Mot exceeding Rupees One Lakh per Director per Meeting of Board or Committee
the Act thercof

** As per Sub-section (5) nl'H'm‘lu:im 197 of the L‘umpnm Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the Companies | {Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rubes, 20114

VII.Penalti ishmentf Compoun Offences:
Type ' Sectionof | Brief | Details of Penalty/ | Authori y | 4 ﬂ.pp-ea] made.
| the deamphnn Punishment/ [RDY I any (give
Companies | Compounding fees | NCLT/ | details)
Act imposed Court] |
‘A.Company =i -5 == B
Penalty* " : % :
Punishment - | - * : l - B
_ Compounding | - | e = 3=  —
=5 i B. Directors .
Penalty - [ - [ 3 - | -
1 Punislnnent I - ' - | - | 5 =
L Cﬂmgnu.nd.ing - ] - | i . =

A
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C, Dther Officers In Default
Pematy [ .~ [ T
I"'un.isl_m_!ent . = | - | - T ! =
Compounding | - | . | - ‘

*Subsequent to the year under review, National Housing Bank (NHB) imposed
penalty on the Company on account of non-compliance. The details are as below:

Diate of Letter Amount of Penalty MNon-compliance

April 21, 2020 Rs. 1,55,000/- (One Lakh Para 2(1) {zc) of the HFC
‘ifty-Five Thousand Only) (NHB) Directions 2010 and
L plus applicable GST @ 18% Policy Circular 55

April 21, 2020 Rs. 5000/ - (Five Thousand Policy Circular

Only) plus applicable GST @
18%

May 26, 2020 Rs, 1,000/ - (One Thousand Paragraph 44(2)ii) of the

Only) plus applicable GST'@ | Housing Finance Companies
18%% (NHB) Directions, 2010

[ &3
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Amnexnure B

Form No, MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies {Appaintment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited
[CIN: U65999DLZ013PLC255432)

107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place,
Pitampura, New Delhi 110034, INDIA

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by ART Housing Finance (India) Limited [hereinafter called “the
Company”), which iz an unlisted public limited company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conductsfstatutory compliances and
cxpressing my opinion thereon

We report that:-

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

h) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in seeretarial records, We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion

) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the
Comipany,

d} We have obtained the Management representation, wherever reguired, about the compliances of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete,

e} The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test hasis,

] The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and ather
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby report that in our
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2020
(“Audit Period®) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other recards maintained
by the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2020 only, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™) and the rules made thereunder;

{ii) The Securities Contracts [Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder:

[iii} National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and Housing Finance Companies ("NHE") Directions, 2010 and
other applicable rules thereat.

We further report that, there were no actions f events in pursuance of:
5 2
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[a) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder:

(k) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Repulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:

(€] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

[d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 19949.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

n The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009

(] The Securities and Exchange Board of India { Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; and

(h) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Hoard of
India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act"):-

Il The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

I The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

ili. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client;

requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the Financial Year 2019-20

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the
Board of Directors (55-1) and General Meetings (55-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India(ICSI), which the Company has generally complied with,

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations and Guidelines, to the extont applicable, as mentioned above,

L. The Company iz engaged in the business of financing housing projects and giving housing Loans, to
provide finance to agencies engaged in the business of construction of residential houses or flats for
purpases of construction of such houses and flats, including the acquisition and development of land
for construction of such house or flats., there is no other specific law applicable to the Company except
details given above in point (i) to (ili) hercinabove.

We farther report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect
tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory
financial audit and other designated professionals,

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors till the Audit Peried covered
herein this report. As per the representation given by the Management, the required Committees of the
Board of Directors were duly constituted, The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices have been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings during the financial year
under review, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent properly before the scheduled meeting and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications an the agenda items before
the Meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting,

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board
were unanimous, and no dissenting views have been recorded. The decisions which have taken place in
meetings and required to be intimated in necessary returms o RO, have been Filed general on time in most
af the cases,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company to commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regularions and gubeline = ((/ %H v
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We further report that during the audit period the Company not undertaken any such events,/ actions that
may have a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,

regulations, Guidelines, standards, ete. {referred to above).

For Dolly Vilacha & Co.
Company Secretaries

Dally Vilacha

Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No.: AZ7277
Certificate of Practice No 15356
UDN: ADZ 727 TRO00496790
Date: 24th July, 2020

Place: Delhi

MNote:

Corporate (Mfice of the Company and also, the Secretarial Auditors, both, are situated / based at DELHI MCR,
ane of most affected area due to CoVID-19 pandemic. Hence, Secretarial Audit has been carried out with
limited access to physical records and resources avallable with both the Company and Secretarial Muditors,
still Seeretarial Audit has been done with due care and vigilance to the extent possible, to safeguard the
Interest of all stakeholders including but not limited to shareholders, lenders, government authorities ¥

B §L " e
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FORM NO. AOC-2

p o

Annexure - C

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2013)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangement or transactions entered during the year ended March
31, 2020 which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: NIL
(INR in crores)

o

Name of
the
Related
Party

Nature
of
Relatio
nship

Nature of
Contract/
Arrangeme
nt/

transaction

Duration
of
Contract/
Arrange
ment/
Transacti
on

Total
Value of
Contract/
Arrangem
ent/
Transacti
on

NIL

For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Rafiul Kumar Pandey

Director
DIN: 00250437

Salient
Terms of
Contract/
Arrangeme
nt/

transaction

Date of
Approva
1 by the
Board

Amount
paid as
advance,
if any

1_'¥!.|



Arnexnre - D
INFORMATION RELATED TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORFTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS® REPORT IN
TERMS OF SECTION 134(3}(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH
RULE (8)(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

=EmEs FEEE== SEmE= S ST EmE= =

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The information in Part A and B, pertaining to conversation of energy and technology
absorption are not applicable to ART Housing Finance (India) Limited, as it is a
Housing Loan provider. However, the Company requires energy for its operations
and every endeavour has been made to ensure the optimal use of energy, avoid
waslage and conserve energy as far as possible,

The Company continuously evaluates global innovation and technology as a

benchmark and wherever required, enter into arrangements to avail the latest
technology trends and practices.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The Company has not earned any foreign exchange however the amount of foreign
exchange outgo is given below:

Earnings: NIL
Outgo: Rs. 0.13 crores

L
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NOTICE OF 7T ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 7th (Sixth) Annual General Meeting of ART Housing Finance
(India) Limited (formerly known as ART Affordable Housing Finance (India) Limited) will be held
on Monday, July 27, 2020, at 05:00 P.M through electronic mode at a shorter notice to transact
the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the Directors’ Report and Auditors’
Report thereon and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification, the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Annual Audited Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the
Company i.e. Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2020 along with the Statement of Profit & Loss
and Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the financial year
ended on that date and Notes annexed to and forming integral part of financial statements
along with the Director’s Report and Auditor’s Report be and are hereby approved and
adopted.”

2. To appoint Statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard, pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof,
for the time being in force), M/s S M M P & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN
120438W), be and is hereby appointed as Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion
of the 12t Annual General Meeting, at such remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.”

Special Business:

3. To consider the appointment of Mr Atul Mehta (DIN: 00112451) as an Independent
Director of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, pass with or
without modification the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the approval
of the members be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Atul Mehta (holding
DIN: 00112451), as an Independent Director of the Company, to hold office for a period of
5 (Five) years w.e.f. May 09, 2020 and shall not be liable to retire by rotation hereinafter in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.”

ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED
(Formerly known as ART Affordable Housing Finance (India) Limited)
Registered Office: 107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi —110034 | CIN: U65999DL2013PLC255432
Regional Hub: 49, Udyog Vihar, Phase-1V, Gurugram-122015, Haryana | Phone: +91124 6622200
E-mail: contact@arthfc.com | www.arthfc.com
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4. To consider the appointment of Mr Rahul Kumar Pandey (DIN: 00250437) as an
Independent Director of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, pass
with or without modification the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the approval
of the members be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr Rahul Kumar Pandey
(DIN: 00250437), as an Independent Director of the Company, to hold office for a period of
5 (Five) years w.e.f. May 22, 2020 and shall not be liable to retire by rotation hereinafter in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. To consider the appointment of Ms. Ritika Sati (DIN: 08741012) as Whole- Time Director of
the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, pass with or without
modification the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Ms. Ritika Sati (DIN: 08741012), who was appointed as an Additional Director
of the Company with effect from May 9, 2020 and who holds office till the date of the
Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule
V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof), and subject to the approval of the Central Government, as may be required, Ms.
Ritika Sati (DIN: 08741012), be and is hereby appointed as the Whole-Time Director of the
Company, to hold office for a period of five years with effect from May 9, 2020, subject to
all regulatory approvals, as may be required in this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Ritika Sati (DIN: 08741012) is entitled for a
remuneration for an amount of Rs. 25,00,000/- per annum (Rupees Twenty-Five Lakhs
only) and a Special Retention Bonus amounting to Rs 5 Lakhs, which will be given as per
the Retention policy of the Company as may be approved by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to
revise, enhance, alter and vary from time to time the terms and conditions of the
appointment and/or remuneration based on the recommendation of the Board (including
any recommendation received from the Nomination & Remuneration Committee in such
manner as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors) within the maximum amounts
payable to the Directors in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force).

ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED
(Formerly known as ART Affordable Housing Finance (India) Limited)
Registered Office: 107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi —110034 | CIN: U65999DL2013PLC255432
Regional Hub: 49, Udyog Vihar, Phase-1V, Gurugram-122015, Haryana | Phone: +91124 6622200
E-mail: contact@arthfc.com | www.arthfc.com
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6. To consider the appointment of Mr. Manish Singh (DIN: 08745528) as Whole- Time Director
& Interim CEO of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, pass with
or without modification the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Manish Singh (DIN: 08745528), who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company with effect from May 20, 2020 and who holds office till the date
of the Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and
is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule
V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof), and subject to the approval of the Central Government, as may be required, Mr.
Manish Singh (DIN: 08745528), be and is hereby appointed as the Whole-Time Director &
Interim CEO of the Company, to hold office for a period of five years with effect from May
20, 2020, subject to all regulatory approvals, as may be required in this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Manish Singh (DIN: 08745528) is entitled for a
remuneration for an amount of Rs. 71,08,741 /- per annum (Rupees Seventy-One Lakh
Eight Thousand and Forty-One only) with the detailed salary breakup as mentioned below
and a Special Retention Bonus amounting to Rs. 32,31,246/ - (Thirty-Two Lakh Thirty-One
Thousand Two Hundred and Forty-Six Only), which will be given as per the Retention
policy of the Company as may be approved by the Board of Directors.

Details of Salary Structure CTC
Basic 2132622
HRA 1066311
Supplementary Allowance 2931266
Reimbursements

LTA 177647
Children Education Allowance 2400
Car running reimbursements 200000
Driver Expenses 180000
Meeting Expenses 60000
Retirals

Provident Fund 255915
Gratuity 102580
Total CTC 7108741

ART HOUSING FINANCE (INDIA) LIMITED

(Formerly known as ART Affordable Housing Finance (India) Limited)

Registered Office: 107, Best Sky Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi —110034 | CIN: U65999DL2013PLC255432
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to
revise, enhance, alter and vary from time to time the terms and conditions of the
appointment and/or remuneration based on the recommendation of the Board (including
any recommendation received from the Nomination & Remuneration Committee in such
manner as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors) within the maximum amounts
payable to the Directors in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force).

To consider the appointment of Mr Shrenik Shah (DIN: 07047931) as an Independent
Director of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, pass with or
without modification the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the approval
of the members be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr Shrenik Shah (DIN:
07047931), as an Independent Director of the Company, to hold office for a period of 5
(Five) years w.e.f. July 16, 2020 and shall not be liable to retire by rotation hereinafter in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Sd/-

Ritika Sati

Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
ACS- 24016

574/3, Prem Nagar, Sector 12A Road,
Gurugram, Haryana- 122001

Date: July 24, 2020
Place: Gurugram
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NOTES:

1. In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has,
vide General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020
dated April 13,2020 and General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 (collectively
“MCA Circulars”), permitted companies to conduct Annual General Meeting (AGM)
through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means, subject to compliance
of various conditions mentioned therein.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD
OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. HOWEVER, THE MEETING IS BEING CONDUCTED BY
ELECTRONIC MODE, AND ACCORDINGLY THE APPLICABILITY OF
SUCH SECTIONS WITH RESPECT TO APPOINTMENT OF PROXY ARE
NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE SAID MEETING.

3. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to certain
ordinary business to be transacted at the 7t AGM is annexed hereto. All documents
referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be
available for inspection electronically. Members seeking to inspect such documents
can send an email to ritika.sati@arthfc.com/ secretarial@arthfc.com.

4. Members who are body corporate intending to appoint their authorised
representative(s) to attend the Annual General Meeting are requested to send
to the Company on ritika.sati@arthfc.com/ secretarial@arthfc.com, a certified

copy of the resolution of its Board of Directors / other governing body
authorising their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the
AGM,, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act.

5. Members are requested to notify the change in the Registered Address, if any,
along with the Pin code number immediately to the Company.

6. Shorter notice consent is attached with this notice for approval of members to
call this meeting at shorter notice then required under the Companies Act,
2013 and the articles of the Company. Members are requested to send the same
on or before July 27, 2020, to enable the Company to hold the meeting on July
27, 2020, (if the consent is received from 95% of members who are entitled to
vote at the meeting) as required under the Secretarial Standard issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries (ICSI) and as mandated with effect from 1st
July 2015 as per section 118 of the Companies Act 2013.
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7. Members are requested to note that the resolutions set out in the Notice will
be decided through show of hands or by conducting poll, in case demanded
by the Members.

8. In case of any query, the members are requested to contact on
ritika.sati@arthfc.com/ secretarial@arthfc.com.

9. The process of participation in the Meeting through electronic mode is as
follows:

I. Via Desktop/Laptop:

It is recommended to use Chrome or Safari for seamless functioning of the
application.

Step 1: Open the application by clicking on the URL: https:/bluejeans.com/
with meeting ID as provided

Step 2: Select the Option “Use Computer Audio”

Step 3: On the top of the screen please find Audio and Video buttons which
can be toggled to ON and OFF

Step 4: Click on the “Join Meeting Now” button.

Note:

1.To the bottom left of the screen there are 3 buttons available for ‘People View,
Speaker View, Gallery View’. It is recommended to view in “Gallery View” as this
option splits screen amongst 10 users at any point in time.

2. On the top left there is pane to view people who all are connected under “People”
and to “Chat”.

I1. Via Mobile:

Step 1: Download “Blue Jeans” application from Play Store/ App Store.

Step 2: Allow the application to access photos, media and files on your device
Step 3: Click on “Join a meeting or Event”

Step 4: Input Meeting Id & Pass Code as provided

Step 5: Click on “App audio and Video”

Step 6: Check if Microphone and Video buttons are toggled to “ON”"

Step 7: Click on “Join Meeting”
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Tips for seamless meeting:

o Use a Headset: Internal microphone can sometimes pick up background noise
hence headphones with inbuilt boom mic can help while providing better
audio quality.

o Lighting: Light can play a major role in how others are seeing you. Make sure
the light source is not behind you and your room is well lit.

e Background: When joining from home, background is important as others
could see what is happening. Choose a spot with neutral background which
doesn’t distract your participants.

e Quiet Location: Try to avoid noisy common areas. Instead, join from a quiet
location whenever possible.

o Poor Connection Tips: In a case of a poor connection try disabling your video
to conserve bandwidth.

o Camera Angle: By using self-view, you can test the angle of your camera and
position yourself. Look into the camera lens while talking to make eye contact
with your audience.

o Mute: Keep your mic muted whenever you are not speaking.

o Sharing the content: Moderator would be sharing the content throughout the
meeting.

Note:

As everyone is aware of the present load on digital communication systems and
stressed bandwidth due to pandemic situations few technical glitches may as
mentioned below may arise.

Jittering of images
Buffering

Delay in voice transmission
Delay in body moments
Delay in PPT change over

Gl L=

These technical issues when encountered, users are advised to disconnect and
re-login to join the call. Technical issues may arise as we will be working on
open and shared internet bandwidth.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

Item No. 3

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting scheduled on May 9, 2020, appointed
Mr. Atul Mehta as an Additional Director in the capacity of Independent Director for a term
of five (5) consecutive years with effect from May 9, 2020, not liable to retire by rotation,
subject to consent by the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
(AGM). In terms of section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have
recommended the appointment of Mr. Atul Mehta as an Independent Director pursuant to
the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has received a declaration from Mr. Atul Mehta confirming that he meets the
criteria of independence under the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company has also
received Mr. Atul Mehta consent to act as a Director in terms of section 152 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and a declaration that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in
terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Considering the rich and vast experience of Mr Atul Mehta, your Board believes that his
induction in the Board will strength to the Company. The details of Mr Atul Mehta in
pursuance of the provisions of the Secretarial Standards are mentioned in Annexure 1.

None of other Directors except Mr Atul Mehta or Key Managerial Personnel and their
relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said
Resolution. The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution(s) set
out at item no. 3 of the Notice for the approval of the Members.

Item No. 4

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting scheduled on May 9, 2020, appointed
Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey as an Additional Director in the capacity of Independent Director
for a term of five (5) consecutive years with effect from May 22, 2020, not liable to retire by
rotation, subject to consent by the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting (AGM). In terms of section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors
have recommended the appointment of Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey as an Independent
Director pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has received a declaration from Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey confirming that he
meets the criteria of independence under the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company
has also received Mr. Rahul Kumar Pandey consent to act as a Director in terms of section
152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and a declaration that he is not disqualified from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Considering the rich and vast experience of Mr Rahul Kumar Pandey, your Board believes
that his induction in the Board will strength to the Company. The details of Mr Rahul Kumar
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Pandey in pursuance of the provisions of the Secretarial Standards are mentioned in
Annexure 1.

None of other Directors except Mr Rahul Kumar Pandey or Key Managerial Personnel and
their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said
Resolution. The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution(s) set
out at item no. 4 of the Notice for the approval of the Members.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting scheduled on May 9, 2020, appointed
Ms. Ritika Sati as an Additional Director designated as Whole-Time Director for a term of
five (5) consecutive years with effect from May 9, 2020, subject to all such regulatory
approvals as may be required in this regard.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152, 196, 197 and 203 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the Members is required for appointment
of Ms. Ritika Sati as the Whole-Time Director of the Company with effect from May 9, 2020
and she shall be liable to retire by rotation.

Considering the rich and vast experience of Ms Ritika Sati as she is also the Company
Secretary of the Company, your Board believes that her induction in the Board will strength
to the Company. The details of Ms Ritika Sati in pursuance of the provisions of the Secretarial
Standards are mentioned in Annexure 1.

None of other Directors except Ms Ritika Sati or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution. The
Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution(s) set out at item no. 5
of the Notice for the approval of the Members.

Item No. 6

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting scheduled on May 20, 2020,
appointed Mr. Manish Singh as an Additional Director designated as Whole-Time Director
& Interim CEO for a term of five (5) consecutive years with effect from May 20, 2020, subject
to all such regulatory approvals as may be required in this regard.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152, 196, 197 and 203 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the Members is required for appointment
of Mr. Manish Singh as the Whole-Time Director & Interim CEO of the Company with effect
from May 20, 2020 and he shall be liable to retire by rotation.

Considering the rich and vast experience of Mr Manish Singh as he is also the Chief Business
Officer of the Company, your Board believes that his induction in the Board will strength to
the Company. The details of Mr Manish Singh in pursuance of the provisions of the
Secretarial Standards are mentioned in Annexure 1.
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None of other Directors except Mr Manish Singh or Key Managerial Personnel and their
relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said
Resolution. The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution(s) set
out at item no. 6 of the Notice for the approval of the Members.

Item No. 7

The Board of Directors of the Company vide their resolution passed by circulation, appointed
Mr. Shrenik Shah as an Additional Director in the capacity of Independent Director for a
term of five (5) consecutive years with effect from July 16, 2020, not liable to retire by rotation,
subject to consent by the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
(AGM). In terms of section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have
recommended the appointment of Mr. Shrenik Shah as an Independent Director pursuant to
the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has received a declaration from Mr. Shrenik Shah confirming that he meets
the criteria of independence under the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company has also
received Mr. Shrenik Shah consent to act as a Director in terms of section 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and a declaration that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a
Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Considering the rich and vast experience of Mr Shrenik Shah, your Board believes that his
induction in the Board will strength to the Company. The details of Mr Shrenik Shah in
pursuance of the provisions of the Secretarial Standards are mentioned in Annexure 1.

None of other Directors except Mr Shrenik Shah or Key Managerial Personnel and their
relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said
Resolution. The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution(s) set
out at item no. 7 of the Notice for the approval of the Members.

For ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

Sd/-

Ritika Sati

Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
ACS- 24016

574 /3, Prem Nagar, Sector 12A Road,
Gurugram, Haryana- 122001

Date: July 24, 2020
Place: Gurugram
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Details of Directors who are being appointed as per the Secretarial Standards:

Name Mr. Atul | Mr. Rahul | Ms. Ritika Sati Mr. Manish | Mr. Shrenik
Mehta Kumar Pandey Singh Shah

Age 54 years 66 years 36 years 47 years 37 years

Qualificati | CFA.,, B.COM, | M.Sc CS, BCom, LLB MBA FCA, FAFD,

on B.G.L. and CFE
F.CS,

Experience | Mr. Atul | Mr. Pandey has | Ms. Ritika Sati is | Mr. ~ Manish | Mr Shrenik
Mehta has | professional an Affiliate of | Singh is | has  more
shepherded experience  of | ICSI and a Law | passionate and | than 15
Institute of | more than 34 |alumna with over | result oriented | years of
Company yearsin RBland | 12 years  of | professional, experience
Secretaries All | NHB with 12 | experience in | possessing in different
India as | years in top | Insurance, more than 20 | sectors  at
President  in | management Banking & | years of | national &
year 2015-16; | cadre Finance  Sector. | experience in | internationa
He is actively She carries with | BFSI. He has |1 level -
associated with herself a | relevant and | likewise
Institute of profound diverse cross | Finance -
Company understanding of | functional Bank &
Secretaries of all  Regulatory, | expertise ~ in | NBFCs,
India  (ICSI) Control & Legal | setting and | Logistic -
and was frameworks scaling up | CHA &
Elected Central under  various | Retail Lending | Freight
Council laws like | Businesses Forwarder
Member of Corporate Laws, &
ICSI for 2 IPR, IRDA, NHB, Transporter,
consecutive SEBI. Textile,
terms. He is Automobile,
also a regular Research
faculty House,
member  for Entertainme
several nt, telecom
training etc. He is
programs  at Partner -
WIRC of ICSI, Business
ICSI-CCGRT Strategy &
and  various Solution
leading B- Practice of
Schools.  He SNCO.
was past

Chairman of
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Western India

Regional
Council
(WIRC) of
Institute of
Company

Secretaries of
India (ICSI) in

2009

Terms and | To be | To be appointed | To be appointed | To be | To be

Condition | appointed fora | for a period of | for a period of | appointed for a | appointed

s of | period of five | five yearsand to | five years as | period of five | for a period

appointme | years and to be | be  paid  the | Whole Time | years as Whole | of five years

nt or re-| paid the sitting | sitting fees for | Director of the | Time Director |and to be

appointme | feeg for | attending  the | Company & Interim CEO | paid the

nt along attending the | Board and of the | sitting fees

with  the | Board and | Committee Company for

details of | Committee Meetings attending

remunerat | \featings the Board

ion sought and

to be paid Committee
Meetings

Remunera | Sitting fees for | Sitting fees for - - Sitting fees

tion last | the meetings the meetings for the

drawn attended attended meetings

attended

Date  of | May 9, 2020 May 22, 2020 May 09, 2020 May 20, 2020 | July 16, 2020

first

appointme

nt on the

Board

Sharehold NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

ing in the

Company

Relationsh N.A. N.A. Ms. Ritika Sati is Mr. Manish N.A.

ip  with the Company Singh is the

other Secretary of the | Chief Business

Directors, Company Officer of the

Managers Company

and other

Key

Manageria

1 Persons
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of the
Company

The 5 3 -* -* 1
number of
meetings
of the
Board
attended
during the
year

Directorsh 6 - - 1 1
ip in other
Companie
s

*None of the meetings attended in the capacity of Director
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ROUTE MAP FOR EGM VENUE AND ATTENDANCE SLIP

Considering the COVID pandemic outburst, MCA vide its General Circular No.
14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and
General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 had permitted companies to hold
the AGM through electronic mode exempting physical presence of members at the
venue of AGM, for maintenance of social distancing. In persistence, the meeting is
being convened through electronic mode, without any physical presence of members
and the proceedings of the AGM conducted shall be deemed in compliance with the
Secretarial Standards on General Meeting (S5-2).
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